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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

The governors of The Broxbourne School (the 'School' or the 'Charitable Company') present 
their statutory report together with the financial statements of the Charitable Company for 
the year ended 31 August 2022. 

The report has been prepared in accordance with Part 8 of the Charities Act 2011 and it is 
also the report of the directors for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set 
out on pages 36 to 41 of the attached financial statements and comply with the School's 
memorandum and articles of association, applicable laws and Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102). 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 

Constitution 

The School is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable 
Company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents 
of the School. 

Following the revision of the School's Articles of Association in February 2021, there are 10 
members who are both members and appointed community governors. These appointed 
community governors act with 4 elected parent governors and 4 elected staff governors 
including the Headteacher as the trustees for the charitable activities of The Broxbourne 
School. These trustees are the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of 
company law. 

Details of the governors who served during the year and up to the date of approval of this 
report are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 

Members' Liability 

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the 
Charitable Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within 
one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding 
£10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. 

Governors' Indemnities 

At the start of every academic year, all governors are required to complete and sign a 
Declaration of Business Interests Form which is held by the Company Secretary. In addition, 
at the start of every full Governing Body and committee meeting governors are asked to 
declare any conflict of business interests. Where an interest is declared, the governor must 
leave the meeting while a related item is under discussion. No qualifying third party 
indemnity provisions have been declared in this financial year. Details of indemnity 
insurance in place are given in note 9 to the financial statements. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Governors 
♦ The members may appoint up to 10 Community governors. The total number of 

governors (including the Headteacher) who are employees of the School should not 
exceed one third of the total number of governors. 

♦ The Headteacher shall be treated for all purposes as being an ex-officio governor. 

♦ Parent governors shall be elected by parents and guardians of registered pupils at the 
School. A parent governor must be a parent of a pupil at the School at the time when 
they are elected and must not be a member of staff. The Governing Body shall make all 
necessary arrangements for, and determine all other matters relating to, an election of 
parent governors, including any question of whether a person is a parent of a registered 
pupil at the School. Any election of parent governors which is contested shall be held by 
secret ballot. The arrangements made for the election of a parent governor shall provide 
for every person who is entitled to vote in the election to have an opportunity to do so by 
post or, if he prefers, by having his ballot paper returned to the School by a registered 
pupil. Where a vacancy for a parent governor is required to be filled by election, the 
Governing Body shall take such steps as are reasonably practical to secure that every 
person who is known to them to be a parent of a registered pupil at the School is 
informed of the vacancy and that it is required to be filled by election, informed that they 
are entitled to stand as a candidate, and vote at the election, and given an opportunity 
to do so. The number of parent governors required shall be made up by parent 
governors appointed by the Governing Body if the number of parents standing for 
election is less than the number of vacancies. In appointing a parent governor, the 
Governing Body shall appoint a person who is the parent of a registered pupil at the 
School; or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is the parent of a 
child of compulsory school age. 

♦ The staff governors shall be elected by staff members at the School. A staff governor 
must be a staff member at the time when they are elected. If a staff governor ceases to 
be a staff member then they shall be deemed to have resigned and shall cease to be a 
governor. The governors shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine all 
other matters relating to, an election of the staff governors, including any question of 
whether a person is a staff member. Any election of staff governors which is contested 
shall be held by secret ballot. 

♦ The governors may appoint up to 3 co-opted governors. A to-opted governor' means a 
person who is appointed to be a governor by being co-opted by governors who have not 
themselves been so appointed. The governors may not co-opt an employee of the 
School as a co-opted governor if that would cause the total number of governors 
(including the Headteacher) who are employees of the School to exceed one third of the 
total number of governors. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Governors 

All governors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, 

plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as governors. New 

governors are invited to a meeting with the Chair of the Governing Body and the 

Headteacher. Induction includes guidance on charity, educational, legal and financial 

matters. As there are normally only two or three new governors a year, induction tends to be 

done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. In addition new governors are 

expected to attend the Induction course provided by the Hertfordshire County Council 

Governance Team. 

Organisational Structure 

Appropriate powers and functions are delegated to the Headteacher and include 

responsibility for the internal organisation, management and control of the School, the 

implementation of all policies approved by the Governing Body and the direction of teaching 

and the curriculum. The Headteacher is the Accounting Officer. 

The Full Governing Body has delegated some duties and powers to the committees 

described below. The Full Governing Body will ratify all committee decisions of the Finance 

and Premises Committee and the Personnel and Curriculum Committee. The quorum for 

the Full Governing Body is set out in Articles 114 and 116 of the Academy's Articles of 

Association. 

All governors are members of at least one of four Monitoring Groups (MG), established to 

monitor the work of the School: MG1: Improving the environment and health and safety; 

MG2: Improving learning to include curriculum, teaching and learning, care, support and 

guidance; MG3: Attainment and progress monitoring; overview of intervention strategies 

including those to support disadvantaged pupils and use of ICT to support teaching and 

learning; MG4: Strategy and target setting. A member of the Senior Leadership Team also 

attends each of the four Monitoring Groups. MG1 report to the Finance and Premises 

Committee; MG2 and MG3 report to the Personnel and Curriculum Committee. MG4 reports 

through the Headteacher's report to the Full Governors' meeting. 

The School does not have any subsidiaries. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Organisational Structure (continued) 

Committee Name Duties of Committee Quorum for Committee 

Finance and Premises 

Committee 

♦ 

♦ 

♦ 

Report to each Full Governing Body meeting 

Be responsible for all financial matters including the 

formulation and monitoring of the budget in accordance 

with the Academies Trust Handbook 

Monitor the effectiveness and condition of the School's 

facilities and ensure that the School complies with 

health and safety regulations 

At least 3 

community/parent 

governors will constitute 

a quorum 

 

♦ Formulate recommendations for inclusion in the 

   

School's improvement plan 

  

♦ Receive monitoring reports from MG1 

 

Personnel and 

Curriculum Committee 

♦ Report to each Full Governing Body meeting At least 3 

community/parent 

 

♦ Be responsible for all personnel matters other than 

those referred to the Staff Disciplinary and Grievance 
governors will constitute 

a quorum 

  

Committee 

  

♦ Be responsible for all matters relating to the quality of 

teaching, the development and application of the 

curriculum and achievement in the School 

  

♦ Receive monitoring reports from MG2 and MG3 

 

Pupil Disciplinary 

Committee 

♦ Report to each Full Governing Body meeting 3 community/parent 

governors will constitute 

 

♦ Be responsible for dealing with all pupil disciplinary 

matters requiring governors' attention 
a quorum 

Staff Disciplinary and 

Grievance Committee 

♦ Report to each Full Governing Body meeting 3 community/parent 

governors will constitute 

 

♦ Be responsible for dealing with all staff grievances and 

staff disciplinary matters requiring governors' attention 
a quorum 

Appeals Committee ♦ Report to each Full Governing Body meeting 3 community/parent 

governors will constitute 

 

• Hear appeals against decisions of the Staff Disciplinary 

and Grievance Committee about staff disciplinary 

matters, in accordance with agreed procedures 

a quorum 

 

♦ Hear appeals against decisions by the Headteacher in 

relation to staff discipline and dismissal 

  

♦ Make any determination or decision under the 

   

Governing Body's Complaints Procedure 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Organisational Structure (continued) 

Committee Name Duties of Committee Quorum for Committee 

Admissions 

Committee 

♦ 

♦ 

♦ 

Report to each Full Governing Body meeting 

Be responsible for dealing with all pupil admissions 

Annually review admission criteria and make 

recommendations 

3 community/parent 

governors will constitute 

a quorum 

The Finance and Premises Committee reviews and monitors in detail the Budget and the 
Value for Money Statement. These are then presented to the full Governing Body for 
ratification. Similarly, the Finance and Premises Committee reviews and brings to the Full 
Governing Body for ratification the internal financial procedures set out in the financial 
regulations manual; the procedure and timetable for regular reporting of financial progress 
against the budget; the setting and approval of delegated authority levels and signatories for 
cheques, bank forms and Department for Education (DfE) returns; the procedures for 
purchasing and procurement, including limits for tendering; insurance arrangements; payroll 
services; register of assets; receipts of gifts and hospitality; oversight of the internal and 
external audit requirements and the reporting and investigation of suspected thefts and 
frauds. 

During the year governors have held three Full Governing Body meetings. In addition, the 
Finance and Premises Committee has met five times and the Personnel and Curriculum 
Committee has met three times. Each Monitoring Group has met at least twice. A register of 
training undertaken by governors is updated regularly and kept by the Company Secretary. 

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 

The key management personnel of the School, responsible for directing and controlling the 
School comprise the governors together with the senior leadership team. Governors are not 
remunerated for their services as governors of the School. However, certain governors (staff 
governors) are remunerated in their capacity as School employees. 

Staff governors and the senior leadership team are paid on the main teachers' scale and 
leadership scale as set out in the School's pay policy. Performance management of staff 
governors is carried out by their line managers and reviewed by the Headteacher. A panel 
of governors is nominated each year to carry out the performance management review of 
the senior leadership team. An adviser from Herts for Learning is present to assist 
governors with the Headteacher's performance management. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Trade union facility time 
During the year there was no time spent on trade union facility time. 

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships 

The Broxbourne School is not part of a federation. However, it is committed to working in 
partnership to promote learning and well-being for its own pupils and those in the local 
community. Links with the Herts for Learning, Alban Teaching Hub, University of 
Cambridge, University of York (modern foreign languages (MFL) centre for excellence), 
University College London (UCL) Institute of Education and University of Hertfordshire 
enable the School to learn about innovation and to share best practice with schools across 
the country. The School continues to exchange ideas with schools throughout Hertfordshire. 

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships (continued) 

All parents, carers and teaching staff of the School are automatically members of the 
Friends of the Broxbourne School (FOTBS) (Charity Number 290886). FOTBS help to raise 
funds for the school by organising various events during the year. They also support 
teaching staff and parents, for example by providing refreshments at the many parents' 
evenings and school events. 

The School works closely with four partner primary schools in the local community. 

The School hosts The Broxbourne Music Centre, an extended community partnership which 
improves music provision in the School and locality because the School is able to share 
accommodation, equipment and peripatetic expertise. 

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 

Objects and Aims 

The School's objects ("the Objects") are specifically restricted to the following: 

♦ to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but 
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying 
on, managing and developing a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum ("The 
Broxbourne School"); and 

♦ to provide or assist in the provision, in the interests of social welfare, of facilities at The 
Broxbourne School for recreation or other leisure time occupation for people in the local 
community who have need of such facilities, with the aim of improving the conditions of 
life of such persons for the public benefit. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued) 

Objectives, Stategies and Activities 

The Broxbourne School aims to 'raise achievement and expectations in a caring and 
supportive environment' and to ensure 'Achievement and Opportunity for all'. 

The main objectives of the School during the year ended 31 August 2022 are summarised 
below: 

♦ Improve learning; 

♦ Raise achievement; 

♦ Continue to review and monitor safeguarding procedures; 

♦ Promote positive behaviour and attitudes for learning; 

♦ Ensure effective self-evaluation and monitoring of practice; and 

♦ Improve sixth form accommodation and create a business centre to host a T level in 
business and administration. 

Public Benefit 

The governors of the School have complied with their duty to have due regard to the Charity 
Commission's guidance on public benefit in exercising their duties. Its aims fall within the 
following charitable purposes that are for public benefit: prevention of poverty; advancement 
of education, health, citizenship and community development; advancement of the arts, 
culture, heritage or science, amateur sport; environmental protection or improvement; 
advancement of human rights, conflict resolution or reconciliation; the promotion of religious 
or racial harmony, equality and diversity; and relief of those in need by reason of youth, age, 
ill health, disability, financial hardship, or other disadvantage. 

STRATEGIC REPORT 

Key Performance Indicators 

The grades awarded this year to students recognise their hard work and have enabled them 
to embark on their next steps with confidence. It is difficult to compare this year with 
previous years as pupils were not able to sit examinations in 2020 and 2021. This year, one 
in three of all examination grades were the highest 7 to 9 or equivalent NIA. 34 students 
achieved 8 or more of the highest grades 7 to 9. 

 

2022 2021 2020 
Attainment 8 Score 56.1 59.6 58.6 
%5 + 9-4 Including EM 78 84 83 
%5 + 9-5 Including EM91 61 69 64 
Ebacc APS 5.2 5.8 5.7 
% 9-4 English 91 94 93 
% 9-4 Maths 82 87 86 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

A-level results were also exceptional with students achieving on average an exceptionally 
high 39.2 points per entry (B grade). 35% of all examination grades were the highest A*/A 
grades. This enabled many students to embark on competitive courses such as medicine, 
at top Russell Group universities including Oxford and Cambridge and to achieve places 
on prestigious high level apprenticeships. 

 

2022 2021 2020 
APS 123 136 130 
APS Per Entry 39.2 43.5 40.9 
%A* 15 20 16 
%A*/A 35 53 41 
%A*-B 65 77 74 
%A*-C 85 94 94 
%A*-E 100 100 100 

Financial Review 

A summary of the year's results are provided on the Statement of Financial Activities on 
page 32. 

Total income for the year ended 31 August 2022 amounted to £9,091,263 (2021 -
£31,712,051). 

Most of the School's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency 
(ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. 
The grants received from the ESFA during the financial year and the associated expenditure 
are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities. 

Capital grants and donations received are credited to the restricted fixed assets fund and 
the balance on the fund is reduced by the annual depreciation charge. 

During the year, total expenditure was £9,488,169 (2021 - £8,725,101). The operational 
surplus for the year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and all accounting adjustments 
arising from the pension scheme valuation) was £207,176 (2021 — deficit of £214,728). 

At 31 August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £27,591,020 (2021 -
£27,829,102) and movements in tangible fixed assets are shown in note 11 to the financial 
statements. The assets were used principally for providing education and the associated 
support services to the pupils of the School with minimal lettings income. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Financial Review (continued) 

The School received £23,345 Covid Catch-up premium in 2021-22. This was used to 
support pupils in many different ways including: a revised assessment programme with 
invigilated "early mocks" and progress checks to gain greater awareness of learning gaps 
and give detailed feedback (+ 8 months impact (EEF toolkit)); a sixth form tutor programme 
and October catch up programme for English and maths (+ 5 months impact (EEF toolkit)); 
the employment of "Year 14" students to provide one-to-one tuition (+ 5 months impact (EEF 
toolkit)); LSAs engaged in more one-to-one and socially-distanced small group work; 
ensuring continuity of learning with remote specialist teaching from the School's own highly 
trained teachers (despite being unable to attend school as critically extremely vulnerable, 
pregnant or isolating) - webcams/training/visualisers purchased and additional cover 
supervisors/supply teachers employed to be physically present in classrooms (to manage 
behaviour and facilitate remote teaching); extra resources on Google Classroom including 
departmental online courses/ annual license subscriptions/revision guides etc. (EEF toolkit + 
4 months (digital resources)); measures to reduce COVID related anxiety and development 
of resilience by providing "Covid safe" physical environment and expansion of counselling 
capacity; the development of well-being resources on Google Classroom/form time 
activities; the reduction of exam related stress and development of resilience with small 
group workshops focused on exam stress using additional counselling hours; sixth form 
mentoring to increase motivation of pupils who did not engage during lockdown. The 
School's estimated total spending in all areas related to the Pupil Premium and Catch Up 
recovery programme was £209,225. 

The School has also received £25,718 as a School- led Tutoring grant. This has allowed 
one to one or small group tuition for 127 pupils in Years 7 to 11. 

In September 2022, the School admitted its first cohort with an additional 24 pupils as the 
Pupil Admission Number has increased in the new school buildings to 240. In the first year 
(2022-23) this will bring in an additional £98,835 KS3 AWPU and this will follow through 
each year until 2028. It is expected that sixth form numbers will also increase with a larger 
KS4 cohort and the introduction of T Levels which have replaced our current vocational 
qualifications. The School is one of the only providers locally of T Levels. The School does 
not expect to have to change its curriculum and staffing structure greatly at KS4 and 5 as 
most class sizes are smaller in these key stages. The School has also increased its lettings 
income as a result of its new state-of-the-art facilities. In the first year, the lettings income 
was £123,906. The expenditure related to lettings was £47,410 leaving a lettings surplus of 
£76,496, of which £30,000 has been allocated to a Designated Fund to finance the long-
term maintenance requirements of the sports and drama facilities. 

The School was also awarded £361,209 as a T level capital grant. This has allowed the 
'shell and core' area on the first wing second floor to be partially built out into a business 
centre to host the School's first T level in business and administration. In addition, the sixth 
form accommodation has been expanded to include a study common room space. 

The Broxbourne School 12 



Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Financial Review (continued) 
The School achieves value for money because it deploys its available resources efficiently, 
effectively and economically to meet the needs of its pupils and to achieve outstanding 
outcomes. Benchmarking against similar schools demonstrates expenditure is targeted to 
improve pupils' learning and in those areas is higher than the average e.g. educational 
supplies per pupil, learning resources per pupil, ICT per pupil. Staff costs are also high 
because of the importance the School places on recruiting and retaining high quality 
specialist teachers. Best value practices - challenge, compare, consult, compete are 
adopted in all financial matters, policy making and the day-to-day running of the School. 
The School's Development Plan and subject improvement planning are accurately costed. 
Budget priorities reflect priorities written in the School's Development Plan. 

Reserves Policy 

The School held fund balances at 31 August 2022 of £27,868,914 (2021 - £25,373,820) 
comprising £747,894 (2021 - £540,718) of unrestricted funds (including designated funds of 
£30,000 (2021: £nil)) and £27,121,020 (2021 - £24,833,102) of restricted funds. The 
restricted funds balance comprises the balance on the tangible fixed assets fund of 
£27,591,020 (2021 - £27,829,102) and the pension reserve deficit of £470,000 (2021 -
£2,996,000). Because the Local Government Pension Scheme is a funded scheme, 
employers' pension contributions will increase in line with the deficit over a period of years. 
The School will not be liable for a lump sum, the increased pension contributions will be met 
from the School's budgeted annual income and so there will be no direct impact on the free 
reserves of the School in recognising the deficit on the pension scheme. 

The governors have reviewed the reserve levels of the School during the reporting period. 
This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match 
income with commitments and the nature of the reserves. 

The school's current level of free reserves is £717,894 (excluding the £30,000 designated 
funds). The governors consider that, whilst the ideal level of free reserves would be 
equivalent to one month's salary costs, given uncertainties over future pay awards and pupil 
funding the school should, over the medium term, seek to maintain minimum free reserves 
equivalent to 5% of budgeted costs. In addition from its unrestricted funds, the School has 
established and should build a Designated Fund for the medium/long term maintenance of 
the school's sports and drama facilities which are let to third parties and provide a valuable 
source of additional income to the school. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Financial Review (continued) 

Investment Policy 
Investments must be made only in accordance with written procedures approved by the 

Governing Body except for deposits to an interest bearing savings account. 

Fundraising 
Chase New Homes have agreed to donate £2,578 to sponsor the School football teams' kit 

in 2022-23. No other fundraising activities (by way of appeals, collections, or otherwise 

seeking donations) have taken place this year. The governors will consider regulations or 

best practice guidance notes covered by the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) 

Act 2016 before beginning any fundraising activities. 

Going Concern 
After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that 

the School has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 

financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can 

be found in the Principal Accounting Policies. 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
The school has created a detailed risk assessment which has been supplemented in 

relation to the covid-19 pandemic. This is regularly updated and reviewed by Governors. 

The governors have created a risk register which evaluates the following: 

♦ the type of risks the School faces and the risks regarded as tolerable; 

♦ the likelihood of the risks materialising and the School's ability to reduce their incidence 

and impact on the School's operations; and 

♦ control procedures which can respond quickly to evolving risks arising from factors 

within the School and to changes in the external environment. 

The register covers a variety of risk areas, including: 

♦ natural risk — uncontrollable event e.g. fire; 

♦ failure to comply with health and safety legislation resulting in an employee/pupil or 

visitor being injured or killed; 

♦ financial control risk resulting in serious budget deficit or fraud; 

♦ failure to comply with Employment law resulting in litigation, tribunals; 

♦ competition for funding/reputation/stakeholder risk — achievement standards falling or 

poor marketing; falling rolls; 

The Broxbourne School 14 



Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued) 

♦ charitable status risk - risk the School could lose its charitable status; 

♦ insurance risk — inadequate insurance; 

♦ technology risk — information security risk; virus risk/corruption of data risk; cyber attack 

♦ GDPR — failure to comply with data protection regulations; and 

♦ Safeguarding and Child Protection. 

At present, the major risks to which the School is exposed, as identified by the governors, 
are those relating to the budget and risks to its reputation from failure to comply with 

legislation. The governors have implemented a number of systems to manage and mitigate 

these risks as follows: 

Risk that budget will be in deficit: Budget reviewed by strategy governors, Finance and 
Premises Committee and approved by Full Governing Body. Chair of Governing Body and 

Headteacher monitor regular and monthly forecasts. The Finance & Premises Committee 
receive updates on performance against budgets on a termly basis. 

Health and Safety (H&S): Annual risk assessment takes place and regular monitoring by 
governors, site staff and senior staff. H&S policy regularly reviewed. Regular H&S audit e.g. 
fire risk assessment. Construction Design and Management professional engaged to 
monitor H&S with regard to school redevelopment. Procurement process ensures 

appropriate attention to H&S matters. 

Safeguarding: All staff and governors are regularly reminded of safeguarding matters 

(during regular staff briefings and all governing body meetings) and undertake statutory 
training every three years. Child protection policy and safeguarding advice regularly 
reviewed and staff sign register to confirm they have read. Targeted advice or referrals 
made for all child protection issues. Transfer of child protection files follows clear procedure. 

Regular communication between six nominated Designated Senior Persons. Two governors 

have specific child protection safeguarding responsibilities. 

Employment law: School seeks HR advice with all employee issues. Staff well-being and 

retention considered. 

The School has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in 

more detail in the 'Governance Statement'. 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Plans for Future Periods 

The 2022/23 aims and key objectives for the School include: 

♦ Quality of Education — implementation: continue to improve the quality of learning 
and teaching. Promote our key T&L principles in order to maximise pupils' learning of 
the curriculum: challenge, question, explain, model, scaffold, feedback, retrieve. 
Increase pupils' ability to articulate what they are learning and to understand how this 
links into previous material or across subjects (through use of Last time.../This 
time.../Next time...). Ensure that pupils' knowledge is retained over a long period of time 
(through use of: Start of lesson retrieval activities, questions about previously covered 
content, low-stakes quizzing for knowledge). Build on current reading strategies to 
ensure that pupils meet and exceed age related expectations (use of Herts Reading 
Fluency Project, Phonological Awareness Programme for students with assessed 
need). 

♦ Quality of Education - impact: continue to raise achievement and narrow the gap for 
disadvantaged students through tailored curriculum pathways, outstanding teaching and 
learning, tracking of pupils' progress and targeted interventions: Attainment 8; Progress 
8; A-level points per entry; and positive KS5 value-added. 

♦ Behaviour & Attitudes: Promote positive attitudes to behaviour and attendance 
post Covid-19 - return overall attendance to 96%+ and narrow the gap by raising the 
attendance of disadvantaged pupils from 91% to 95%+. Reduction in persistent 
absence from 14 to 10%. Develop a systematic approach on new MIS system 
Arbor for managing and communicating behaviour —use of praise and consequence 
scales to improve consistency and tracking. Establish an effective praise and reward 
system — use Arbor to embed and communicate a reward system that recognises good 
effort, academic progress and contribution to the extra-curricular life of the school. The 
system will aim to engage and motivate pupils throughout key stages 3, 4 and 5 

♦ Personal Development: Celebrate our diverse community, appreciate student 
voice and promote our shared values of respect, responsibility, aspiration and 
supportiveness — e.g. student voice to feed into our celebration of the school's diverse 
community through inclusion and recognition using aspirational cultural figures to inspire 
e.g. Black History Month, International Women's Day and LGBT History Month. 
Achieve Wellbeing accreditation —enhance pupil and staff well-being using an 
external audit, the Healthy Young Minds in Herts Accreditation as a tool for reflection on 
our whole school approach to well-being. CEIAG — use the Unifrog platform to ensure 
high quality, impartial and up-to-date careers advice 
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Governors' report Year to 31 August 2022 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

Plans for Future Periods (continued) 

♦ Leadership and management: Keep safeguarding at the forefront of everything we 
do. Ensure an effective recovery curriculum including the effective provision of one-
to-one and small group tuition. Ensure the curriculum is ambitious, coherently 
sequenced and designed to give all learners, particularly the disadvantaged, the 
knowledge and cultural capital they need to succeed in life. Develop leadership 
capacity using external and internal programmes. Use the HfL Great Representation 
Programme - to break down obstacles to progress and ensure out curriculum and 
broader school experience fully reflects and supports pupils from all backgrounds 

♦ The Environment: Ensure value for money and sustainability by careful 
monitoring of the use of energy. 

The School continues to review its provision and looks for ways to further improve. In this 
way the School aims to be 'outstanding', with exemplary teaching and learning, high 
standards, excellent relationships, pupils enjoying their education and exceptional care, 
support and guidance. The School has the following priorities in ensuring future success: 
raising achievement, teaching and learning, staff development, shared accountability, 
monitoring and auditing provision. 

AUDITOR 
Insofar as the governors are aware: 

♦ there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's auditor is 
unaware; and 

♦ the governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that 
information. 

The governors' report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the Governing 
Body, as the company directors and signed on its behalf by 

Mrs Karen Trew 
Chair of the Governing Body 

Date: ,O m1  d\tej,Axiy:f 
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Governance statement 31 August 2022 

Scope of responsibility 

As governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The 

Broxbourne School (the 'School') has an effective and appropriate system of control, 

financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than 

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable 

and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Governing Body have delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as 

Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both 

propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and 

responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the School and the 

Secretary of State for Education. The Headteacher is also responsible for reporting to the 

Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

Governance 

As governors, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance 

Handbook and competency framework for governance. 

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' 

Report and in the Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The Governing Body has met 

on 3 occasions. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Governing Body was as 

follows: 

Governor 
Number of 

meetings attended 
Out of a 
possible 

Mr C Bradbrook 1 3 
Mrs C Campany 2 3 
Mr R Davies (resigned 2/11/2021) 0 0 
Ms C Eriksen (appointed 6/1/2022) 1 2 
Mr D Holliday 3 3 
Mr D Horner 3 3 
Ms P Humphreys 3 3 
Mrs M Jones (appointed 19/10/2021) 3 3 
Ms C Key (appointed 16/5/2022) 1 1 
Mr J Lawn (re-elected 20/5/2022) 3 3 
Mrs S Maddock 3 3 
Mrs A Martino 3 3 
Mrs D McNicholas 1 3 
Mr S Mustoe 3 3 
Mrs C Pepper 3 3 
Mrs A Pilbeam (resigned 15/10/2021) 0 0 
Mr R Smith 1 3 
Mrs K Trew 3 3 
Mr G Troll 3 3 
Mrs P Waddington 3 3 
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Governance statement 31 August 2022 

Governance (continued) 

Whilst the Governing Body has met less than six times during the financial year, the 

Governors are satisfied that they have been able to maintain sufficient oversight of the 

School's finances through the support of the Finance and Premises Committee (see below). 

The Finance and Premises Committee met either remotely or in person 5 times last year 

and draw any matters of significance or concern to the attention of the full Governing Body. 

The full Governing Body also receive, consider and approve the annual report and financial 

statements and the annual budget at their meetings. Strategy governors also meet regularly 

and review the management accounts. 

The Governing Body has monitored the School's performance and supported its drive to 

achieve ambitious targets identified in the School Development Plan. Governors have also 

continued to secure funding opportunities which have ensured that the School's facilities are 

fit for the 21st century. 

Conflicts of interest 

The school requires all individuals identified as needing to complete a register of business 

interest to confirm the details held are accurate on an annual basis. All individuals are 

notified of the requirement to inform the school of any changes to their register at the 

earliest possible time and this is contained within the governance documents of the school. 

All committee and board meeting agendas have, as standing items, the requirement to 

confirm the existence of any conflicts and also that the registers are up to date. 

Finance and Premises Committee 

The Finance and Premises Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body. 

Further details of the Committee's duties are outlined in the Governors' Report. The focus of 

the Committee during the year has been to monitor and control costs in a number of areas, 

such as catering, energy, costs associated with the move into the new school buildings, 

cleaning and staff training. 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

Governor 
Number of meetings 

attended 
Out of a 
possible 

Mr R Davies (resigned 2/11/2021) 0 1 
Ms C Eriksen (appointed 6/1/2022) 3 3 
Mr D Holliday 5 5 
Ms P Humphreys 5 5 
Mr J Lawn (re-elected 20/5/2022) 4 5 
Mrs D McNicholas 3 5 
Mrs C Pepper 5 5 
Mr R Smith 3 5 
Mrs K Trew 3 5 
Mr G Troll 5 5 
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Governance statement 31 August 2022 

Governance review 

The most recent skills audit identified areas of expertise where the Governing Body had 
limited knowledge/expertise e.g. building, surveying and HR. In recent parent elections, 
these skills have been secured. 

When a vacancy on the Governing Body arises, the School refers to the results of the skills 
audit when considering the suitability of prospective governors. A further skills will take 
place in 2022-23. 

Review of value for money 
The contracts register is regularly reviewed to ensure value for money. 

I am pleased to report that the school has been able to resume the extra-curricular 
programme and some trips have also started again. These include day visits to Walton-on-
the Naze; Bhaktvedanta Manor; Kew Gardens; Science Museum; Harlow Outdoors Centre; 
Greenwich Millennium; Harry Potter studios; theatre trips (Great Gatsby) (King Lear); 
Geography fieldtrip to Bournemouth; university visits; two Bronze and one Gold Duke of 
Edinburgh expedition; Biology fieldtrip to Flatford Mills; G&T Trip to Big Bang Science Fair. 
The ski trip deposit for 2021 had to be moved to 2023 due to the continued uncertainty of 
Covid and rules for visiting Austria. 

As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the School 
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that 
value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for 
the taxpayer resources received. 

The Accounting Officer considers how the School's use of its resources has provided good 
value for money during the academic year, and reports to the Governing Body where value 
for money can be improved, including by the use of benchmarking data where available. 
The Accounting Officer for the School has delivered and improved value for money during 
the year by: 

1. Raising student attainment 
Students' overall attainment is high at GCSE. Progress (-0.04) is lower overall than 
expected due to long term mental health issues and absence from some students post 
Covid. Performance in Languages and Science GCSEs were disappointing and reflect a 
national picture especially in languages. A level performance was high in attainment and 
as expected for value added. 

2. ICT Provision 
The School has continued with the use of one-to-one devices with parents purchasing 
Chromebooks in Years 7 to 11 using a leasing scheme. Chromebooks and the use of 
Google Classroom has been a huge factor in supporting remote learning. They have also 
reduced the amount of printing needed. PCs have been replaced in two Computer 
Science classrooms and an Art room in preparation for an upgrade to Windows 11. 
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3. Energy costs 
The school has used a broker to secure competitive energy tariffs through to October 
2024 in advance of existing fixed contracts expiring. 

4. Benchmarking 

The School benchmarks financial performance against other academies to further ensure 
we are achieving good value for money. Areas that are higher than average are 
investigated. Staff costs remain high because of the importance the School places on 
recruiting and retaining high quality specialist teachers. Best value practices — challenge, 
compare, consult and complete are adopted in all financial matters, policy making and 
the day-to-day running of the School. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the School's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place at 
the School for the year ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual 
report and financial statements. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The Governing Body has reviewed the key risks to which the School is exposed together 
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to 
mitigate those risks. The Governing Body is of the view that there is an ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating and managing the School's significant risks that has been in place for 
the year ended 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Governing Body. 

The risk and control framework 

The School's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular 
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties 
and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes: 

♦ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic 
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Governing Body; 

♦ regular reviews by the Finance and Premises Committee of reports which indicate 
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works 
and expenditure programmes; 

♦ setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 

♦ clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; 
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The risk and control framework (continued) 

• delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and 

• identification and management of risks. 

The Governing Body has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has 
decided not to appoint an internal auditor. However, the governors have appointed Mrs D 
McNicholas, a governor, to carry out a programme of internal checks. The reviewer's role 

includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the 
School's financial systems. On a termly basis, the reviewer has reported to the governors on 
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Governing Body's 

financial responsibilities. No material control issues were identified as a result of the termly 
visits undertaken during the year. 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by: 

• the results of the termly programme of internal checks carried out by Mrs D McNicholas; 

• the work of the external auditor; 

• the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and 

• the work of the Senior Leadership Team within the School who have responsibility for 

the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. 

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of 
the system of internal control by the Finance and Premises Committee and a plan to 

address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

Approved by order of the Governing Body and signed on their behalf by: 

Mrs Karen Trew Ms Paula Humphreys 
(Chair of the Governing Body) (Headteacher and Accounting Officer) 

Date: acrd WCArt,Akk Q 
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Statement on regularity, propriety and compliance 31 August 2022 

As Accounting Officer of The Broxbourne School (the 'School'), I have considered my 

responsibility to notify the School Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms 

and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the School and 

the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the 

requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2021. 

I confirm that I and the School's Governing Body are able to identify any material irregular or 

improper use of funds by the School, or material non-compliance with the terms and 

conditions of funding under the School's funding agreement and the Academies Trust 

Handbook 2021. 

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance 

have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, 

these will be notified to the Governing Body and ESFA. 

Ms Paula Humphreys 

Accounting Officer 

Date  2 N Gvaln bs2-4r-  10 2) 
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Statement of governors' responsibilities 31 August 2022 

The governors of The Broxbourne School (the 'School') (who act as trustees of the School 
and are also the directors of the School for the purposes of company law) are responsible 
for preparing the governors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the 
Annual Accounts Requirements issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) 
and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the School and of the income and 
expenditure of the School for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the 
governors are required to: 

♦ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

♦ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies 
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022; 

♦ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

♦ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, 
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
and 

♦ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the School will continue in operation. 

The governors are responsible for ensuring that adequate accounting records are kept 
which are sufficient to show and explain the School's transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the School and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the School and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the School 
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety 
and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received 
from the ESFA have been applied for the purposes intended. 

The governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial 
information included on the School's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body and signed on its behalf by: 

Mrs Karen Trew 
Chair of the Governing Body 
Date: 
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Independent auditor's report on the financial statements 31 August 2022 

Independent auditor's report to the members of The Broxbourne School 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of The Broxbourne School (the 'charitable 
company') for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the statement of financial 
activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the principal accounting policies 
and the notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to 
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (the Charities SORP 2019) and the 
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

♦ give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 
2022 and of its income and expenditure, for the period then ended; 

♦ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; 

♦ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; 
and 

♦ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies 
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the governors' use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve 
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern 
are described in the relevant sections of this report. 
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Other information 
The governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

♦ the information given in the governors' report, which is also the directors' report for the 
purposes of company law and includes the strategic report, for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; 
and 

♦ the governors' report, which is also the directors' report for the purposes of company 
law and includes the strategic report, has been prepared in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material 
misstatements in the governors' report including the strategic report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

♦ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit 
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

♦ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 
or 

♦ certain disclosures of governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

♦ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
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Responsibilities of governors 
As explained more fully in the governors' responsibilities statement, the governors (who are 
also the directors for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the governors are responsible for assessing the 
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
governors either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our 
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: 

♦ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the 
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations; 

♦ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the charitable company through 
discussions with management, and from our knowledge of the academy trust sector; 

♦ the identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly 
and the team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit; 

♦ we considered the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the charitable 
company and determined that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, the 
Charities SORP 2019, the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, the Academies 
Financial Handbook 2021, and the academy trust's funding agreement with the ESFA as 
well as legislation pertaining to safeguarding in the UK; 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) 
♦ we understood how the charitable company is complying with those legal and regulatory 

frameworks by making inquiries to management and those responsible for legal, 
compliance and governance procedures. We corroborated our inquiries through our 
review of the minutes of governors' meetings and papers provided to the governors. 

♦ we planned and carried out a separate limited assurance engagement in respect of 
regularity, propriety and compliance in accordance with the Framework and Guide for 
External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA, as 
set out in our separate independent reporting accountant's assurance report on 
regularity. 

We assessed the susceptibility of the charitable company's financial statements to material 
misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by: 

♦ making enquiries of management and those charged with governance as to where they 
considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and 
alleged fraud; and 

♦ considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we: 

♦ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships; 

♦ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; 

♦ tested the authorisation of expenditure as part of our substantive testing thereon; 

♦ assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting 
estimates set out in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and 

♦ used data analytics to identify any significant or unusual transactions and identify the 
rationale for them. 

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we 
designed procedures which included, but were not limited to: 

♦ agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation; 

♦ reviewing the minutes of governors' meetings; 

♦ enquiring of management and those charged with governance as to actual and potential 
litigation and claims; 

♦ reviewing any available correspondence with Ofsted, ESFA and HMRC; and 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) 
♦ the work undertaken in relation to the limited assurance engagement in respect of 

regularity, propriety and compliance in accordance with the Framework and Guide for 
External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA, as 
set out in our separate independent reporting accountant's assurance report on 
regularity. 

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed 
that laws and regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would 
become aware of non-compliance. International Standards on Auditing also limit the audit 
procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the 
governors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal 
correspondence, if any. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located 
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor's report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the charitable company's members those matters we are required 
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for 
this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Catherine Biscoe (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of Buzzacott LLP, Statutory Auditor 
130 Wood Street 
London 
EC2V 6DL 

Date: 
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Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity 31 August 2022 

Independent reporting accountant's assurance report on regularity to The 

Broxbourne School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and further to the requirements of the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts 
Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance 
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Broxbourne School 

(the charitable company) during the period from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have 
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform 

to the authorities which govern them. 

This report is made solely to The Broxbourne School and the ESFA in accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Broxbourne School and the ESFA those matters we are required to state to them in a report 

and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than The Broxbourne School and the ESFA, for our 
work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of The Broxbourne School's accounting officer and the 

reporting accountant 

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Broxbourne School's 

funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 21 January 2011 and the 
Academies Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure 
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the 
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our 
profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance 

with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 
to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our 
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income 

received during the period from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been 
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform 

to the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External 
Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA.. We performed a 
limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to 
express a negative conclusion on regularity. 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance 
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance 
engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
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Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity 31 August 2022 

Approach (continued) 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity 
and propriety of the charitable company's income and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

♦ An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across all of the 
charitable company's activities; 

♦ Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including 
enquiry, identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence 
across all areas identified as well as additional verification work where considered 
necessary; and 

♦ Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work 
completed as part of our financial statements audit in order to support the regularity 
conclusion. 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all 
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period from 1 
September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by 
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 
them. 

Catherine Biscoe (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
Buzzacott LLP 
Reporting Accountants 
130 Wood Street 
London 
EC2V 6DL 

Date: 
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Statement of financial activities Year to 31 August 2022 

 

Notes 

Unrestricted 
general 

fund 
£ 

Restricted 
general 

funds 
£ 

Restricted 
fixed 

assets 
fund 

£ 

2022 
Total 

funds 
£ 

2021 
Total 
funds 

£ 

Income from: 

      

Donations and capital grants 1 7,271 

 

314,651 321,922 85,254 
Charitable activities 

      

. Funding for the School's 
educational operations 2 - 7,815,528 - 7,815,528 7,627,649 

Other trading activities 3 953,695 - - 953,695 684,296 
Investments 4 118 - - 118 337 
Other income 

      

. Gain on disposals 

 

- - - - 23,314,515 

Total income 

 

961,084 7,815,528 314,651 9,091,263 31,712,051 

Expenditure on: 

      

Raising funds 5 86,935 — — 86,935 83,284 
Charitable activities 

      

. School's educational 
operations 6 638,736 8,165,676 596,822 9,401,234 8,641,817 

Total expenditure 5 725,671 8,165,676 596,822 9,488,169 8,725,101 

Net income (expenditure) 

 

235,413 (350,148) (282,171) (396,906) 22,986,950 

Transfer between funds 14 (28,237) (15,852) 44,089 — — 

Other recognised gains and 
losses 

      

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined 
benefit pension scheme 19 - 2,892,000 - 2,892,000 (461,000) 

Net movement in funds 

 

207,176 2,526,000 (238,082) 2,495,094 22,525,950 

Reconciliation of funds 

      

Fund balances brought forward at 1 

      

September 2021 

 

540,718 (2,996,000) 27,829,102 25,373,820 2,847,870 

Fund balances carried forward at 

      

31 August 2022 

 

747,894 (470,000) 27,591,020 27,868,914 25,373,820 

All of the School's activities derived from continuing operations during the above two 
financial periods. 

All recognised gains and losses are included in the above Statement of Financial Activities. 
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Balance sheet 31 August 2022 

 

Notes £ 
2022 2022 

£ 
2021 

£ 
2021 

£ 

Fixed assets 

     

Tangible fixed assets 11 

 

27,591,020 

 

27,829,102 

Current assets 

     

Debtors 12 346,423 

 

199,836 

 

Short term deposits 

 

406,296 

 

406,296 

 

Cash at bank and in hand 

 

988,760 

 

629,429 

   

1,741,479 

 

1,235,561 

 

Liabilities 

     

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 13 (993,585) 

 

(694,843) 

 

Net current assets 

  

747,894 

 

540,718 

Total assets less current 
liabilities 

  

28,338,914 

 

28,369,820 

Pension scheme liability 19 

 

(470,000) 

 

(2,996,000) 

Total net assets 

  

27,868,914 

 

25,373,820 

Funds of the School 

     

Restricted funds 

     

. Fixed assets fund 14 

 

27,591,020 

 

27,829,102 
. Pension reserve 14 

 

(470,000) 

 

(2,996,000) 
Restricted income fund 14 

    

Total restricted funds 

  

27,121,020 

 

24,833,102 

Unrestricted income funds 

     

. General fund 14' 

 

717,894 

 

540,718 
. Designated fund 14 

 

30,000 

  

Total funds 

  

27,868,914 

 

25,373,820 

The financial statements on page 43 to 58 were approved by the Governing Body and 

signed on its behalf by: 

Mrs Karen Trew 

Chair of the Governing Body 

The Broxbourne School 

Company Limited by Guarantee 

Registration Number: 7447497 (England and Wales) 

Date: -Q.V 'c/s 
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Statement of cash flows 31 August 2022 

2022 
£ 

2021 
£ 

 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities A 403,302 408,098 

 

Cash flows from investing activities B (43,971) (74,013) 

 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 359,331 334,085 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2021 1,035,725 701,640 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022 C 1,395,056 1,035,725 

A Reconciliation of expenditure to net cash flows from operating activities 

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per the 
statement of financial activities) (396,906) 22,986,950 

 

Adjusted for: 

   

Depreciation (note 11) 596,822 273,105 

 

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (314,651) (27,453) 

 

Interest receivable (note 4) (118) (337) 

 

Gain on disposal of fixed assets - (23,314,515) 

 

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions 
payable (note 19) 314,000 235,000 

 

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 19) 52,000 40,000 

 

Decrease in debtors (146,587) (14,228) 

 

Increase in creditors 298,742 229,576 

 

Net cash provided by operating activities 403,302 408,098 

B Cash flows from investing activities 

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

Bank interest received 118 337 

 

Purchase of intangible fixed assets — (101,803) 

 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (358,740) —

  

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 314,651 27,453 

 

Net cash provided by investing activities (43,971) (74,013) 

C Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

Cash at bank and in hand 988,760 629,429 

 

Short term deposits 406,296 406,296 

 

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,395,056 1,035,725 
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Statement of cash flows 31 August 2022 

D Analysis of changes in net debt 

At 1 
September Cash 

At 31 
August 

 

2021 flows 2022 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Cash 1,035,725 359,331 1,395,056 
Cash equivalents 
Overdraft facility repayable on demand 

    

1,035,725 359,331 1,395,056 

Total 1,035,725 359,331 1,395,056 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Statement of accounting policies 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied 
consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, 
is set out below. 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of The Broxbourne School have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP 2019), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 
2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. 

The Broxbourne School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. The 
financial statements are presented in Sterling to the nearest Pound. 

Going concern 

The governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there 
are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The governors make 
this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation 
for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the School has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no 
material uncertainties about the School's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 
statements. 

Income 

All income is recognised when the School has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is 
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Grants 
Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The 
balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is 
shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of 
meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the 
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until 
the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is 
received, the income is accrued. 

The General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the 
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from 
income and recognised as a liability. 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Income (continued) 

Grants (continued) 

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life 
of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in 
the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund. 

Sponsorship income 
Sponsorship income provided to the School which amounts to a donation is recognised in 
the statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are 
no performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured 
reliably. 

Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related 
conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 

Donated fixed assets 

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is 
impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should 
be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is 
included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic 
life in accordance with the academy trusts accounting policies. 

Other income 
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and 
to the extent the School has provided the goods or services. 

Expenditure 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer 
economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be 
required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. 
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of 
direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each 
activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. 
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not 
attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis 
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time 
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use. 

Expenditure on raising funds 
This includes all expenditure incurred by the School to raise funds for its charitable 
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading. 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Expenditure (continued) 

Charitable activities 
These are costs incurred on the School's educational operations, including support costs 
and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable 
activities. 

All resources expended are stated net of recoverable VAT. 

Tangible fixed assets 
Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at 
cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from 
the government or from the private sector, they are included on the balance sheet at cost 
and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related grants are credited 
to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward 
in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset 
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful 
economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the School's depreciation 
policy. 

Where assets are being constructed by a third party, the costs of the development are 
recognised once the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the asset passes to the 
School. 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates 
calculated to write off the cost/valuation of each asset on a straight-line basis over its 
expected useful economic life, as follows: 

Freehold buildings 2% per annum 

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 15% per annum 

Motor vehicles 25% per annum 

Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 
Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are 
recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial 
activities. 

Debtors 

Debtors are recognised at their settlement amount less any provision for non-

 

recoverability. Prepayments are valued at the amounts prepaid. 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand represents such accounts and instruments that are available on 
demand. Notice deposits are included on the balance sheet as short term deposits. 

Liabilities 

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in 
settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are 
recognised at the amount that the School anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the 
amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the School has an obligation at the reporting date as a 
result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the 
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based 
on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest 
payable and similar charges. 

Leased assets 

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term. 

Financial instruments 

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The 
financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis 
are as follows: 

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt 
instruments measured at amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments. 
Amounts due to the charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any 
impairment. 

Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 

Financial liabilities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, 
and are measured at amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the 
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial 
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to 
deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity's 
wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Taxation 
The School is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the 
Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK 
corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the School is potentially exempt from taxation in 
respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 
of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 
1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable 
purposes. 

Pensions benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the School are provided by the Teachers' Pension 
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined 
benefit schemes. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost 
of pensions over employees' working lives with the School in such a way that the pension 
cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The 
contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial 
valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is a multi-employer scheme 
and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS 
is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the 
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. 

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the 
School in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at 
fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality 
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations 
are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts 
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme 
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of 
staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also 
recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the 
defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by 
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate 
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on 
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other 
recognised gains and losses. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and 
losses. 

Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting 
any of the charitable objects of the School at the discretion of the governors. 
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Principal accounting policies Year to 31 August 2022 

Fund accounting (continued) 
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital 
purposes imposed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), Department for 
Education or other funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific 
purpose. 

Restricted ESFA funds comprise all other grants received from the Education and Skills 
Funding Agency. 

Restricted other funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from 
the Local Authority, Hertfordshire County Council. 

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
The School makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual 
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 
are discussed below. 

♦ The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a 
variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for 
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which 
projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has 
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any 
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full 
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year to 31 August 2022 

1 Donations and capital grants 
Restricted 

fixed 2022 2021 
Unrestricted assets Total Total 

funds funds funds funds 

 

£ £ £ £ 

Capital grants 

 

314,651 314,651 27,453 
Other donations 7,271 

 

7,271 57,801 

 

7,271 314,651 321,922 85,254 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

£ 

Restricted 
fixed 

assets 
funds 

£ 

2021 
Total 

funds 
£ 

Capital grants 
Other donations 7,801 

27,453 
50,000 

27,453 
57,801 

7,801 77,453 85,254 

2 Funding for the School's educational operations 

    

Restricted funds 

  

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

DfE / ESFA grants 

   

. General Annual Grant (GAG) 7,242,469 6,808,113 

 

Other DfE / ESFA grants 

   

. UIFSM 

 

8,455 

 

. Pupil Premium 217,076 178,020 

 

. Teacher Salary grant 17,855 93,823 

 

. Teacher Pension grant 50,453 270,145 

 

.Others 211,174 76,617 

  

7,739,027 7,435,173 

 

Other Government grants 

   

. Special Education Needs funding 53,156 62,227 

  

53,156 62,227 

 

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA) 

   

Catch-up premium 23,345 85,440 

 

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding 

 

44,809 

  

23,345 130,249 

    

7,815,528 7,627,649 
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year to 31 August 2022 

3 Other trading activities 

 

Unrestricted funds 

 

2022 2021 

 

£ £ 

Hire of facilities 141,011 12,764 
Trip income 178,484 78,441 
Catering income 376,560 251,077 
Miscellaneous income 257,640 342,014 

 

953,695 684,296 

Trip income relates to amounts recovered from pupils or their carers to cover the cost of 

school trips, and whilst classified as "other trading activities" does not represent a means 

of generating a profit for the School. 

4 Investment income 
Unrestricted funds 

2022 2021 
£ £ 

Interest receivable 118 337 

5 Expenditure 

Staff 
costs 

Non pay expenditure 
2022 
Total 

2021 
Total Premises 

Other 
costs 

 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Expenditure on raising funds 

     

. Direct costs - - 60,742 60,742 61,902 

. Allocated Support costs 8,994 9,450 7,749 26,193 21,382 
Charitable activities 
. School's educational operations 

     

.. Direct costs 6,020,348 5,468 542,817 6,568,633 6,423,172 

.. Allocated support costs 972,637 1,021,970 837,994 2,832,601 2,218,645 

 

7,001,979 1,036,888 1,449,302 9,488,169 8,725,101 

 

Staff 
costs 

£ 

Non pay expenditure 
2021 
Total 

£ 
Premises 

£ 

Other 
costs 

£ 

Expenditure on raising funds 
. Direct costs 61,902 

  

61,902 
. Allocated Support costs 8,603 6,300 6,479 21,382 
Charitable activities 
. School's educational operations 

    

.. Direct costs 5,938,805 - 484,367 6,423,172 

.. Allocated support costs 892,665 653,663 672,317 2,218,645 

 

6,901,975 659,963 1,163,163 8,725,101 
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Notes to the 

5 

Financial Statements Year to 31 August 2022 

Expenditure (continued) 

Net expenditure for the year includes: 

2022 
£ 

2021 
£ 

Operating lease rentals 144,108 116,758 

 

(Gain) on disposal of fixed assets - (23,314,515) 

 

Depreciation 596,822 273,105 

 

Fees payable to auditor for 

   

. Audit of the financial statements 10,600 10,600 

 

. Other services 7,545 6,200 

6 Charitable activities - School's educational operations 

    

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

Direct costs 6,568,633 6,423,172 

 

Support costs 2,832,601 2,218,645 

  

9,401,234 8,641,817 

  

2022 2021 

 

Analysis of support costs £ £ 

 

Support staff costs 972,637 657,665 

 

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions 314,000 235,000 

 

Depreciation 591,354 270,498 

 

Technology costs 75,172 88,271 

 

Premises costs 430,616 383,165 

 

Other support costs 429,407 566,906 

 

Legal costs — —

  

Governance costs 19,415 17,140 

  

2,832,601 2,218,645 

7 Staff 

  

a) Staff costs 

   

Staff costs during the period were: 

    

2022 2021 

  

£ £ 

 

Wages and salaries 4,909,898 4,920,016 

 

Social security costs 555,261 527,240 

 

Pension costs 1,446,478 1,370,134 

  

6,911,637 6,817,390 

 

Supply teacher costs 90,342 69,212 

 

Staff severance payments - 15,373 

  

7,001,979 6,901,975 
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year to 31 August 2022 

7 Staff (continued) 

b) Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments 

No staff severance payments were payable during the year ended 31 August 2022 (2021 

- £15,373). 

c) Staff numbers 

The average number of persons (including the senior management team) employed by the 

School during the year ended 31 August 2022 was as follows: 

2022 2021 
No. No. 

Teachers 77 77 
Administration and support 58 58 
Management 10 10 

145 145 

d) Higher paid staff 

The number of employees whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 (excluding employer 

pension contributions) was: 

2022 2021 
No. No. 

£60,001 - £70,000 5 6 
£90,001 - £100,000 2 2 
£100,001 - £110,000 1 
£110,001 - £120,000 — 

e) Key management personnel 

The key management personnel of the School comprise the Governors and the Senior 

Leadership Team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including 

employer pension contributions and employees' social security costs) received by key 

management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £1,288,245 (2021 -

£1,247,021). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements Year to 31 August 2022 

8 Comparative information 
Analysis of income and expenditure in the year ended 31 August 2021 between restricted 
and unrestricted funds: 

 

Unrestricted 
general 

fund 
£ 

Restricted 
general 

funds 
£ 

Restricted 
fixed 

assets 
fund 

£ 

2021 
Total 

funds 
£ 

Income from: 

    

Donations and capital grants 7,801 50,000 27,453 85,254 

Charitable activities 

    

. Funding for the School's educational operations — 7,627,649 — 7,627,649 
Other trading activities 684,296 — 

 

684,296 

Investments 337 — — 337 
Other income 

    

. Gain/(loss) on disposals - - 23,314,515 23,314,515 

Total income 692,434 7,677,649 23,341,968 31,712,051 

Expenditure on: 

    

Raising funds 83,284 

  

83,284 
Charitable activities 

    

. School's educational 
operations 613,401 7,755,311 273,105 8,641,817 

Total expenditure 696,685 7,755,311 273,105 8,725,101 

Net (expenditure) income (4,251) (77,662) 23,068,863 22,986,950 

Transfer between funds (210,477) (197,338) 407,815 

 

Other recognised gains and losses 

    

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 

      

(461,000) 

 

(461,000) 

Net movement in funds (214,728) (736,000) 23,476,678 22,525,950 

Reconciliation of funds 

    

Fund balances brought forward at 1 September 2020 755,446 (2,260,000) 4,352,424 2,847,870 

Fund balances carried forward at 31 August 2021 540,718 (2,996,000) 27,829,102 25,373,820 
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9 Governors' remuneration and expenses 

The Headteacher, staff and other governors only receive remuneration in respect of 

services they provide undertaking the roles of Headteacher and staff and not in respect of 

their services as governors. Other governors did not receive any payments from the 

School in respect of their role as governors. The value of governors' remuneration and 

other benefits for governors in post at any point during the reporting period was as follows: 

 

2022 
£'000 

2021 
£'000 

Ms P Humphreys (Headteacher) 

  

. Remuneration 100-110 115-120 

. Employer's pension contributions 20-25 25-30 
Mrs A Martino (staff governor) 

  

. Remuneration 55-60 55-60 

. Employer's pension contributions 10-15 10-15 
Mrs A Pilbeam (staff governor) 

  

. Remuneration 55-60 55-60 

. Employer's pension contributions 10-15 10-15 
Mrs M Jones (staff governor) 
. Remuneration 50-55 

 

. Employer's pension contributions 10-15 —

 

Mrs S Maddock (staff governor) 

  

. Remuneration 40-45 45-50 

. Employer's pension contributions 5-10 10-15 

During the year ended 31 August 2022, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £227 

(2021 — £423) were reimbursed to two (2021 — one) staff governors in connection with 

their duties as employees of the School and not in connection with their duties as 

governors. No expenses were reimbursed to any other governors. 

10 Governors' and Officers' insurance 

During the year ended 31 August 2022, the School participated in the Department for 

Education's Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK 

government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from 

claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy 

business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees 

and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme. 
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11 Tangible fixed assets 
Freehold 
land and Assets under 
buildings construction 

Furniture 
and 

equipment 
Motor 

vehicles Total 

 

£ £ £ £ £ 

Cost/valuation 

    

At 1 September 2021 27,904,628 - 434,816 9,000 28,348,444 
Additions - 333,586 25,154 - 358,740 

At 31 August 2022 27,904,628 333,586 459,970 9,000 28,707,184 

Depreciation 

    

At 1 September 2021 232,539 

 

277,803 9,000 519,342 
Charge in period 558,093 

 

38,729 596,822 

At 31 August 2022 790,632 

 

316,532 9,000 1,116,164 

Net book value 

    

At 31 August 2022 27,113,996 333,586 143,438 27,591,020 

At 31 August 2021 27,672,089 

 

157,013 - 27,829,102 

12 Debtors 

 

2022 
£ 

2021 
£ 

Trade debtors 35,811 4,988 
VAT recoverable 97,499 68,581 
Prepayments and accrued income 25,908 51,701 
Other debtors 187,205 74,566 

 

346,423 199,836 
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13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 
2022 

£ 
2021 

£ 

Trade creditors 181,560 130,638 
Taxation and social security 135,633 117,923 
ESFA creditor: abatement of GAG 5,582 5,582 
Other creditors 222,454 207,124 
Accruals and deferred income 448,356 233,576 

 

993,585 694,843 

Deferred income 

  

Deferred Income at 1 September 2021 87,658 59,570 
Released during the year (87,658) (59,570) 
Resources deferred in the year 239,588 87,658 

Deferred Income at 31 August 2022 239,588 87,658 

Deferred income primarily comprises income received in advance in respect of school trips 

and events which are scheduled to take place during the 2022/23 financial year. 
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14 Funds 

 

Balance at 
1 September 

2021 
£ 

Income 
£ 

Expenditure 
£ 

Gains, 
losses and 

transfers 
£ 

Balance at 
31 August 

2022 
£ 

Restricted General funds 

     

. General Annual Grant (GAG) — 7,242,469 (7,226,617) (15,852) 

 

Other DfE / ESFA grants 

     

. Pupil Premium 

 

217,076 (217,076) -

  

. Other ESFA grants 

 

355,983 (355,983) -

  

. Pension reserve (2,996,000) - (366,000) 2,892,000 (470,000) 

 

(2,996,000) 7,815,528 (8,165,676) 2,876,148 (470,000) 

Restricted fixed asset funds 

     

. DfE/ESFA capital grants —
Devolved Formula Grant 73,804 289,506 (9,708) 44,089 397,691 

. Capital expenditure from 

     

GAG funding 36,963 25,145 (21,522) - 40,586 
New school building 27,672,089 - (558,093) - 27,113,996 
Other 46,246 — (7,499) — 38,747 

 

27,829,102 314,651 (596,822) 44,089 27,591,020 

Total restricted funds 

     

24,833,102 8,130,179 (8,762,498) 2,920,237 27,121,020 

Unrestricted funds 

     

. General funds 540,718 961,084 (725,671) (58,237) 717,894 

. Designated funds - - - 30,000 30,000 
Total unrestricted funds 540,718 961,084 (725,671) (28,237) 747,894 

Total funds 25,373,820 9,091,263 (9,488,169) 2,892,000 27,868,914 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

ESFA revenue grant fund and other restricted funds 

These grants relate to the School's development and operational activities. 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the School was not subject to a 

limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022. 

Designated fund 

A Designated Fund has been established to accumulate a reserve to finance the medium/ 

long term maintenance and/or replacement costs of the School's Sports and Drama 

facilities which are hired out to community users and provide a key source of income for 

the school. 
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14 Funds (continued) 

Fixed assets fund 

This fund represents the carrying value of the school's tangible fixed assets which are 

required in the day to day operation of the school. 

Pension reserve 

The pension reserve relates to the School's share of the deficit of the Hertfordshire County 

Council Local Government Pension Scheme. 

Other funds 

These grants are from organisations other than the ESFA and are for specific purposes 

relating to the School's development and operational activities. 

Comparative information 

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows: 

 

Balance at 
1 September 

2020 
£ 

Income 
£ 

Expenditure 
£ 

Gains, 
losses and 

transfers 
£ 

Balance at 
31 August 

2021 
£ 

Restricted General funds 

     

. General Annual Grant (GAG) 

 

6,808,113 (6,660,771) (147,342) 

 

Other DfE / ESFA grants 
UIFSM 

 

8,455 (8,455) 

  

. Pupil Premium 

 

178,020 (178,020) 

  

. Catch-up premium 

 

85,440 (85,440) 

  

. Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 
funding 

 

44,809 (44,809) 

  

. Other ESFA grants 

 

440,585 (440,585) 

  

Other local authority 

 

62,227 (62,227) 

  

Other donations 

 

50,000 (4) (49,996) 

  

- 7,677,649 (7,480,311) (197,338) - 
Pension reserve (2,260,000) - (275,000) (461,000) (2,996,000) 

 

(2,260,000) 7,677,649 (7,755,311) (658,338) (2,996,000) 

Restricted fixed asset funds 

     

. Inherited on conversion 3,932,548 

 

- (3,932,548) 

 

. DfE/ESFA capital grants —

      

Devolved Formula Grant 98,073 27,453 (26,684) (25,038) 73,804 
. Capital expenditure from 

GAG funding 36,803 - (10,132) 10,292 36,963 
Local authority grant 285,000 - - (285,000) —

 

New school building — 23,314,515 (232,539) 4,590,113 27,672,089 
Other — — (3,750) 49,996 46,246 

 

4,352,424 23,341,968 (273,105) 407,815 27,829,102 

Total restricted funds 

     

2,092,424 31,019,617 (8,028,416) (250,523) 24,833,102 

Unrestricted funds 

     

. General funds 755,446 692,434 (696,685) (210,477) 540,718 

Total unrestricted funds 755,446 692,434 (696,685) (210,477) 540,718 

Total funds 2,847,870 31,712,051 (8,725,101) (461,000) 25,373,820 
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15 Analysis of net assets between funds 

Unrestricted 
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are funds 
represented by: £ 

Restricted 
General 

funds 
£ 

Restricted 
fixed 

assets 
fund 
£ 

Total 
2022 

£ 

Tangible fixed assets - - 27,591,020 27,591,020 
Current assets 747,894 993,585 - 1,741,479 
Current liabilities - (993,585) - (993,585) 
Pension scheme liability — (470,000) - (470,000) 

Total net assets 747,894 (470,000) 27,591,020 27,868,914 

   

Restricted 

   

Restricted fixed 

  

Unrestricted General assets Total 
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are funds funds fund 2021 
represented by: £ £ £ £ 

Tangible fixed assets — — 27,829,102 27,829,102 
Current assets 540,718 694,843 - 1,235,561 
Current liabilities — (694,843) 

 

(694,843) 
Pension scheme liability — (2,996,000) — (2,996,000) 

Total net assets 540,718 (2,996,000) 27,829,102 25,373,820 

16 Capital commitments 
2022 2021 

£ £ 

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 86,118 

17 Commitments under operating leases 

Operating leases 

At 31 August 2022, the total of the School's future minimum lease payments under non-

 

cancellable operating leases (exclusive of VAT) was as follows: 

Office equipment 

2022 2021 
£ £ 

Amounts due within one year 

Amounts due between two and five years inclusive 

161,784 144,108 

162,028 156,255 

 323,813 300,363 

18 Members' Liability 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the 

company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year 

after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 

for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member. 
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19 Pension and similar obligations 
Under the definitions set out in section 28 of FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer 
pension scheme. The School has accounted for its contributions to the Scheme as if it 
were a defined contribution scheme. The information available on the scheme is set out 
below. 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic 
for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in 
part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are 
able to opt out. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis — 
these contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. 
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 

Contributions amounting to £133,650 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 
(2021 - £106,349) and are included within creditors. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic 
for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following 
enrolment. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes 
contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. 
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial 
review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and 
Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of 
the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are 
dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many 
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 
2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 
2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: 

♦ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% 
administration levy); 

♦ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future 
benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets 
(estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the 
valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 
million; and 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued) 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme (continued) 

♦ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. 

The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed real rate of return is 

2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings 

growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including 

earnings growth is 4.45%. 

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023. 

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,146,478 (2021 -

£910,186). 

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pension  

Scheme website.  

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension 

scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were 

a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information 

available on the scheme. 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was 

£273,000 (2021 - £287,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £216,000 (2021 -

£227,000) and employees' contributions totalled £57,000 (2021 — £60,000). The agreed 

contribution rates for future years are 25.3% of pensionable pay for the employer and 

between 5.5% and 12.5% for the employees depending on their pensionable pay. 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a 

guarantee that, in the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government 

Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee 

came into force on 18 July 2013. 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

At 31 
August 

2022 

At 31 
August 

2021 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.6% 3% 

Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 3.6% 3% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.3% 2% 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 3.2% 3% 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - pre-April 2008 service 50% 50% 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued) 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued) 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in 

mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 

At 31 
August 

2022 

At 31 
August 

2021 

Retiring today 

  

Males 21.9 22.1 
Females 24.4 24.5 

Retiring in 20 years 

  

Males 22.9 23.2 
Females 26.0 26.2 

Sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 August 2022 

Approx 
increase 

to defined Approx 
benefit monetary 

obligation value 
ok £'000 

0.1% decrease in real discount rate 2% 111 
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate 4% 225 
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate 2% 106 

The Academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme were: 
Fair value 

at 31 
August 

2022 
£ 

Fair value 
at 31 

August 
2021 

£ 

Equities 2,571,500 2,808,470 
Gilts 1,182,890 1,536,710 
Property 771,450 582,890 
Cash and other liquid assets 617,160 370,930 

Total market value of assets 5,143,000 5,299,000 

Present value of scheme liabilities: 

  

Funded (5,613,000) (8,295,000) 

Deficit in scheme (470,000) (2,996,000) 

 

2022 2021 
Amounts recognised in statement of financial activities £ £ 

Current service cost (530,000) (462,000) 
Past service cost - - 
Interest income 89,000 78,000 
Interest cost (141,000) (118,000) 

Total amount recognised in the SOFA (582,000) (502,000) 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued) 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) (continued) 

 

2022 2021 
Analysis of pension finance costs £ £ 

Expected return on pension scheme assets 89,000 78,000 
Interest on pension liabilities (141,000) (118,000) 
Pension finance costs (52,000) (40,000) 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were 2022 2021 
as follows: £ £ 

At 1 September 2021 8,295,000 6,747,000 
Current service cost 530,000 462,000 
Interest cost 141,000 118,000 
Employee contributions 57,000 60,000 
Actuarial (gain)/loss - 987,000 
Benefits paid (85,000) (79,000) 
Changes in financial assumptions (3,310,000) —

 

Changes in demographic assumptions (29,000) 

 

Other experience 14,000 -

 

At 31 August 2022 5,613,000 8,295,000 

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme 2022 2021 
assets: £ £ 

At 1 September 2021 5,299,000 4,487,000 
Interest income 89,000 78,000 
Actuarial gain (433,000) 526,000 
Employer contributions 216,000 227,000 
Employee contributions 57,000 60,000 
Benefits paid (85,000) (79,000) 

At 31 August 2022 5,143,000 5,299,000 

20 Related party transactions 

Owing to the nature of the School's operations and the composition of the Board of 

Governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is possible 

that transactions may take place with organisations in which a member of the Board of 

Governors may have an interest. Where transactions involving such organisations take 

place, these are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the School's financial 

regulations and normal procurement procedures. No relevant transactions took place 

during the year to 31 August 2022 (2021 — none). Details of staff governors' remuneration 

and expenses is provided within note 10 to the financial statements. 

The School had no other related party transactions in the year. 
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21 Agency arrangements 
The Academy distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. During 
the year ended 31 August 2022 the Academy received £7,550 (2021 - £8,788) and 
disbursed £9,142 (2021 - £4,057) from the fund. An amount of £5,671 (2021 - £7,353) is 
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA. 
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